Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (pre-1965)

1939

Hyde Park Town v. George Chambers and Tacy Chambers, E. S. Chambers, Bertha Poulsen, David J. Weeks, and Mary Weeks : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The appellant is a Municipal Corporation organized under and existing by virtue of the laws of the State of Utah, and situated in Cache County, Utah.

About the year 1911, the appellant, being without a municipal water system, entered into an oral contract with the Smithfield Irrigation Company. By means of this contract, the right to use water from a certain spring in Birch Creek Canyon was granted by Smithfield Irrigation Company, a mutual irrigation company. The Town constructed a pipe - line to convey the water from this spring in Birch Creek Canyon in a general south or southwesterly direction to a reservoir situated at a slightly higher elevation than the Town.

The pipe-line thus constructed was made of clay tile pipe, and was a gravity line. For this reason, it was necessary to follow the contour of the uneven surface of the lands over which it passed. The lands of the respondents were crossed by this pipe-line in the course of its route to the reservoir. It was necessary for the Town to acquire a right of way across each of these lands, and in consideration of the grant of this right of way the Town orally granted each of said respondents a tap on their respective lands. These taps, connected with the water system of the appellant, flowed a constant dripping stream and this stream was used by the respective land owners for culinary purposes and for stock-watering purposes. None of the respondents ever resided on his lands at any time after said taps were installed, so that by "culinary uses" it is meant only that the water was used for drinking purposes while the men were working on their lands. The oral agreement did not mention any time limit nor was there any discussion of any other consideration for the granting of these taps, except only the grant of the right of wav.

The lands of the respondents are used principally for pasturage, although possibly a little of the land is farmed. It is largely mountainous or side-hill land. There is no evidence tending to show the number of animals grazed on the Chambers' land, and there is little or no evidence to show the number grazed from year to year on the Weeks' land. The latter did, however, testify that during the year 1939 he kept some 25 or 26 animals there; but no proof was introduced as to whether or not this was the number which he had ordinarily kept there.

Within a year or two after the original pipeline was constructed, the springs proved inadequate and the pipe-line was then extended a short distance up Birch Creek Canyon, in an attempt to tap another small spring area; both springs being used. Some years later, this was repeated and the Town tapped a third spring, using all three. About 1916, the line was extended further up Birch Creek Canyon and an additional spring tapped; all of the spring areas being used by the Town.

Notwithstanding these additional sources, the water supply proved very inadequate and along about the year 1935, a large spring situated several miles up Birch Creek Canyon, was tapped. At that time appellant entered into a new contract with Smithfield Irrigation Company, thus securing the waters it now uses in the amount of one-half c.f.s. (Amended Answer, Ab. 19; Finding of Fact No. 15, Ab. 87-88).

During all this period of time, the respondents used their taps. They paid no rentals of any kind to the Town. Shortly after this, the Town decided that it was necessary to replace the old pipe-line with a new pipe-line. for the reason that the old pipe-line leaked and was very wasteful. This new pipe-line was constructed in the same general route as the old line, but being a pressure pipe, it no longer followed the contours of the land, but went in a nearly straight course. Thus in the lands belonging to the respondents, part of the time it followed the same course, but often left it, cutting out curves and bends.

About the year 1887, the respondents Weeks, homesteaded the lands belonging to him, and about that time he built a house on the lands. He con. structed a ditch called the Lower Ditch, which had its source in the same springs as the original source of the town's pipe-line. This ditch conducted water to the lower end of his land. He lived on the land while he was required to'do so for homestead purposes, then he left the place and moved to Smithfield and has never resided there since. This was about the year 1896. Shortly before he left his land, he constructed what was known as the Upper Ditch. This ditch had its source in Birch Canvon, some 160 rods above the Hyde Park intake. It conducted water for stock-watering and irrigation purposes to the lands belonging to the respondents, and this water was used by each of the respondents in connection with others. It was what is known as a High-Water right, and as soon as the stream in Birch Canyon receded from its spring flow, no more water was permitted to run through this ditch for irrigation purposes: but it is claimed that a small amount passed through the ditch and was used for stock-watering purposes, etc., during the greater part of the season.

The respondents never used the lower ditch after the upper ditch was constructed. The upper ditch is still in use for irrigation purposes, but of course, it is still a High-Water right and no water flows in it after the High-Water season ends. Respondents testified that as soon as they got the tap water, they found that it was superior to the culinary water which they had previously conducted through the upper ditch and they, therefore, abandoned their culinary stream. They do not claim that this abandonment was induced by the Town of Hyde Park, or any of its officials, but was due solely to the fact that they preferred the tap water. Respondents seemed to take the position that because of their abandonment of the culinary stream conducted through the upper ditch, they cannot be placed in status quo if the Town refuses to supply them longer with tap water. This abandonment was voluntary on their part, and not induced by appellant.

After the construction of the new pipe-line, the Town permitted its old pipe-line to remain in place and offered to give this pipe-line to the respondents if they wished to accept it. The dripping stream in each of the taps in question passed through a small hole in a cap screwed to the end of a hlaf-inch pipe and some controversy grew up between the appellant and respondents, due to the claim of the appellant that the respondents greatly enlarged the holes in the caps and at times removed the caps ertirely, thus causing much more water to flow through the taps than originally contemplated. Respondents claim that these acts, if done at all, were not done by them, but were done by hunters and other people coming to the taps for a drink of water. Be that as it may, some irritation developed' because of the claim of appellant that the respondents wasted considerable water. When the appellant constructed this new pipe-line it did not permit respondents to construct taps in its new line. Some

was so pronounced that at times some of the citizens could not obtain a drink.

ASSIGNMENT 3

Finding No. 10 is clearly error. All of the evidence including the contracts in evidence, show that the Town was the owner of one-half a cubic foot per second, instead of one and one-half as found by the court. This may have been only a typographical error; but it should be corrected.

ASSIGNMENT 4

Assignment Four is subject to the same observations as we made in our argument on Assignment No. 2.

ASSIGNMENT 5

The Finding No. 13, wherein the court found that the "defendants and their predecessors in interest conveyed a portion of the water of Birch Creek to the Town of Hyde Park for culinary purposes" is totally and entirely unsupported by the Mr. Weeks, the only witness testifying evidence. on this matter, said (Ab. 86) that the only thing he gave the Town was a right of way. It is true he said that "after he got the culinary water from plaintiff's system, he abandoned the culinary system he had in the upper ditch." He did not claim of Hyde Park used, or could that the Town use, this water so abandoned. Presumably, it flowed down Birch Creek, a live stream, to the benefit of Smithfield Irrigation Company, the owner of the stream.

Hyde Park obtained its waters from springs tributary to Birch Creek, and not from Birch Creek itself; hence, the increase in the size of the stream in Birch Creek, if it were increased by this abandonment, would not benefit Hyde Park, but would benefit the Irrigation Company. This abandonment was not made at the request of Hyde Park or any of its officers, but was made voluntarily by the defendants after the right of way was given to the Town and he had found the advantages of using the water from the pipe-line.

ASSIGNMENT 6

We have already called the attention of the Court to the fact that the pleadings and the evidence show that defendants were not supplied with water during any part of the year 1939; hence, this finding that the plaintiff has supplied the defendants with water "ever since 1911" must be error.

ASSIGNMENT 7

There is no evidence to support the court's finding "that ever since said year 1911 these defendants have openly, continuously, adversely and under claim of right, used the said taps and the water flowing therefrom for the purpose of human consumption and watering their livestock, in an amount of about 300 gallons per day."

All the evidence shows that the use by defendants was permissive and with the consent of plaintiff, and hence the use could not be adverse. The right would depend on contract (if there was any contract) and not on adverse possession. We will discuss this further, hereinafter. Then, the finding is not supported, because of another fact. There is no evidence whatsoever as to the amount used by defendants. Weeks said he had enough to run down a corn row. (Ab. 29). He did not say how long the corn row was. There was no other quantity testified to. The defendants, and each of them, lived in Smithfield and did not live on their lands. They say they watered cattle at the taps, and drank the water when they worked on their lands. There was no proof as to the number of cattle pastured by either of the defendants, and the amount found by the court (300 gallons) is based on no evidence whatsoever. There is no evidence whatsoever that any use is made of the water during the winter season, yet the court required the taps to run all year. This would seem to be a clear case of waste. In any event, it finds no support in the evidence.

ASSIGNMENT 8

We have previously, under Assignment No. 5. considered the facts showing that this assignment is well taken.

ASSIGNMENT 9

It would seem obvious that Finding No. 21 is a conclusion, rather than a finding of ultimate facts.

ASSIGNMENT 10

We have called the attention of the Court to the fact that there is no evidence that plaintiff benefitted from the abandonment by defendants (if they did so abandon) of their water rights. Nor were they abandoned at the request of the plaintiff. Plaintiff then would have no duty to restore defendants to the status quo. The rights of plaintiff in this case do not depend on such a restoration. We will discuss this hereinafter.

ASSIGNMENT 11

It is clear that this is not a finding of any fact, but is a conclusion of law drawn by the court from other facts.

ASSIGNMENT 12

This assignment can best be considered later in connection with other assignments.

ASSIGNMENTS 13 AND 14

It is self-evident that no court can determine the amount of water required to supply defendants' cattle, without determining how many cattle belonging to defendants, require water. The court failed to make any such findings; hence, its finding that the defendants are each entitled to 300 gallons per day for human consumption, and sufficient to water the livestock of each defendant, is not based on evidence. The defendants do not live on their lands, and the court did not find the number of cattle to be supplied.

ASSIGNMENT 15

This assignment is best considered later, in connection with others.

ASSIGNMENTS 16, 17, 18 AND 19

These assignments are best considered later, likewise.

The assignments not discussed above will now be discussed together.

The decree entered in this case is based on the general assumption by the court that the oral agreement between plaintiff and defendants, or their predecessors in interest, is now a valid and subsisting agreement and perpetual in its duration. The only testimony on this matter was by Mr. Weeks (Ab. 31-32), and Mr. Toolson (Ab. 38) the predecessor of Chambers. Weeks said he agreed to give a right of way for the tap. No statement was made as to duration of the contract. Mr. Toolson testified to similar facts. The court interpreted this agreement to be perpetual. This interpretation is erroneous. The proper construction of such a contract is that it is terminable at will.

Thus, where a city agreed to perpetually supply a land-owner with water to operate his toilets, free of charge, in exchange for the right granted to the city to lay its sewer pipes across the landowner's land, it was held that such a contract was null and void and ultra vires, and could be terminated by the city. This was because the city had no power to enter into perpetual contracts. The case also held that notwithstanding the city still continued to use the sewer, it was not estopped from repudiating the contract.

Horkan v. City of Moultrie (Ga.) 71 S.E. 785.

The Court in the above case based its ruling on the fact that it would be unfair to let one council bind future ones in such a way that they could not fix equal uniform water rates from time to time.

Thus, also, a right granted to a water company to use the streets of Boise without stating any limit of time, for the purpose of constructing water mains to be used in supplying the inhabitants of the city with culinary water, was held to be a mere license, terminable at will. The Court also held that the officers were not estopped to set aside a void agreement.

Boise City v. Boise Etc. Co. 186 Fed. 705 Cert. Denied 220 U.S. 616, Appeal Dismissed, 230 U.S. 98.

This ruling was placed upon the ground that a perpetual contract cannot be granted by a city, and if attempted to be granted, the contract is terminable at will.

The city agreed to levy a tax of five cents on the dollar perpetually, and pay the money so raised to a water company in order to obtain a water supply. This was held void on the ground that such a perpetual contract was ultra vires and void.

Westminster Water Co. v. Westminster, 98 Md. 551; 56 Atl, 990; 64 L.R.A. 630.

A city and a street railway company entered into a contract to construct an overhead crossing, each to pay a portion of the costs. The contract required the city to keep the crossing in repair perpetually. The law of the State required the railroad company to maintain crossings, and this contract was intended to change this requirement for the reason that the viaduct was much more expensive than was necessary for railroad purposes. The Court held that the contract which purported to perpetually bind the city to assume the duties of the railroad company, was ultra vires and void.

State of Minnesota ex rel. St. Paul v. Minnesota, Etc. Co. 80 Minn. 108, 83 N.W. 32; 50 L.R.A. 656.

A devise to build a hospital providing that the County would support and maintain the hospital perpetually, was held invalid for the reason that the County could not bind itself 'perpetually to support the hospital.

Robbins v. Hoover etal. 50 Colo. 610; 115 P. 526.

These cases seem to make it clear that Hyde Park did not have the power to barter away the rights of its citizens for all future time, as contended for by respondents. And, also, the Court should construe such contracts as subject to being terminated at will. Clearly, Assignments of Error Numbers 15 to 20, inclusive, are well taken.

We have already called the attention of the Court to the fact the only consideration for the grant to the defendants of the right to use the water flowing from the taps, was the grant of a right of way for the pipe-line. This was clearly a "sale" or "exchange" of water rights for a grant of right of way, and is in violation of the provisions of our Constitution.

Section 6, Article XI, Constitution of Utah reads as follows:

"No municipal corporation shall directly or indirectly lease, sell, alien or dispose of any waterworks, water rights, or sources of water supply now, or hereafter to be owned or controlled by it; but all such waterworks, water rights and sources of water supply now owned or hereafter acquired by any municipal corporation, shall be preserved, maintained and operated by it for supplying its inhabitants with water at reasonable charges: Provided, that nothing herein contained shall be construed to prevent any such municipal corporation from exchanging water rights, or sources of water supply, for other water rights or sources of water supply of equal value, and to be devoted in like manner to the public supply of its inhabitants."

No sale of water rights is ever permitted, and an exchange can be made only for water rights of equal value. The plaintiff purchased the only waters it owns, or has ever owned, in Birch Canyon or in any of the springs tributary thereto, from Smithfield Irrigation Company, and obtained none from defendants or their predecessors in interest.

It is generally held that prohibitory provisions such as the one quoted above, are self-executing, and that an act done in violation of these provisions is void.

11 Am. Jr. at Page 695, Note 13; 12 C.J. 731, Note 63.

Being a creature of statute, a municipal corporation possesses such power, and such power only, as the State confers upon it. Subject at all times to constitutional limitations, the legislature may confer upon such corporations such power as it sees fit.

43 C.J. 176.

Municipal corporations are subject to the limitations of both State and Federal Constitutions.

43 C.J. 225.

Parties contracting with a municipality must take notice of its powers. If it goes beyond its

powers, the parties so contracting, do so at their peril.

- Cobb v. City, 179 Okla. 126; 64 Pac. (2d) 901.
- Ryan v. Thomas (Arizona) 53 Pac (2d) 863.
- Utah Rapid Transit Co. v. Ogden City, 89 U. 546; 58 Pac. (2d) 1.

News Etc. v. Carbon County (Utah) 72 Utah 88; 269 Pac. 129.

On the question of the effect of acquiesence in a given situation, or in the performance of an agreement, over a long period of time, see:

San Francisco v. Itsell, 80 Cal. 57; 22 Pac. 74.

This case was appealed to the Supreme Court of the United States and the appeal dismissed; see

10 S.Ct. 24; 133 U.S. 65; 32 L.Ed. 570.

We come now to a consideration of the Utah cases involving sales and exchanges of water by municipal corporations.

Ogden City v. Bear Lake & River Water Works & Irrigation Company, 16 Utah 440: 52 Pac. 697.

This case came before our Supreme Court in 1898, two years after the adoption of the Utah Constitution. It involved a controversy and a consideration of questions atedating the adoption of the Constitution; hence, the prohibitory provision was not referred to in the opinion. The case simply held that the provisions of the charter of a city must be strictly construed. Provisions authorizing the city to lease, convey and dispose of property, both real and personal, for the benefit of the city, the case held, did not authorize the city to lease or otherwise transfer its waterworks system, or its water right used in supplying its inhabitants with water, and that in order to authorize such a sale or transfer the charter would, of necessity, have to specifically authorize that specific act.

State Ex rel Ellerbeck v. Salt Lake City, 29 Utah 361; 81 Pac. 273.

This case was decided on June 24, 1905. It involved the application for a writ of prohibition restraining Salt Lake City and its officers from issuing, negotiating or selling certain municipal bonds issued by the city for the purpose, among other things, of procuring a permanent and adequate increase in the water supply of the city. The munipality had entered into an agreement with certain farmers for the exchange of its Utah Lake Reservoir water for mountain water which could be used for culinary purposes. It was contended that the exchange was not valid, because of the fact that the irrigation water was greater in quantity than the mountain water which the city received in exchange therefor.

The Court had before it the question of exchange referred to in the Utah Constitution. It held that the exchange was valid, even though there was a disparity in the quantity, the value of the water being equated by the superior quality of that received from the farmers. This case simply construes a provision of the Constitution which in and of itself is clear and, it would seem, needs no judicial construction.

18

Brummit v. Water Works Co. 33 Utah 285; 93 Pac. 829.

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