1939

Hyde Park Town v. George Chambers and Tacy Chambers, E. S. Chambers, Bertha Poulsen, David J. Weeks, and Mary Weeks : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT.

ASSIGNMENT No. 1.

This action was commenced in June 1937. The Answer and Counterclaim was filed in April 1939 so that the assignment that the Findings that "plaintiff is the owner of culinary water which supplies the defendants with culinary water" is clearly within the issues in this case and what happened after April 1939 has no bearing on the question. In Findings No. 20 the court expressly makes no findings in this action as to damages if any sustained by the defendants during the late spring and summer of 1939 so that this matter is reserved for future determination should it arise in a proper action.

ASSIGNMENT No. 2.

Assignment No. 2 complains as to the Findings that the defendant is the owner of adequate water to supply both the town and these defendants through the said pipeline. Since this assignment goes to some important matters to be discussed later it will be necessary to examine the record somewhat in detail in connection therewith. It should be remembered that the court also finds in Finding No. 10, as follows:

"That the Town of Hyde Park is the owner of 1.5 c.f.s. of water in their said culinary water system which is sufficient to supply the 750 inhabitants of Hyde Park with 432 gallons of water per person per day and that there are approximately 181 families in Hyde Park using water so that there

is sufficient water to furnish each family of four people 1728 gallons per day. That 300 gallons per day per person is a reasonable amount of water to be allowed for culinary purposes, and 1200 gallons per day is a reasonable amount of water to be allowed to a family of four persons and that the Town of Hyde Park is the owner of an adequate supply of water for culinary purposes to supply the defendants with water for human consumption and for cattle watering purposes in addition to an adequate supply for all culinary purposes for all of the inhabitants of the Town of Hyde Park and that the use of the water in question by the defendants has not and will not seriously impair the use and enjoyment by the citizens of Hyde Park of their rights to the use of culinary water from the said springs. That it does not appear that the Town Board of Hyde Park has ever by any resolution or ordinance determined that the use of a small portion of its water by the defendants as hereafter described, has worked or will in the near future bring about any water shortage to said municipality nor its inhabitants.”

and it is apparently this finding that is attacked by Assignments Number Two and Three.

It is conceded that the original finding prepared by the court does contain the typographical or clerical error that Hyde Park is the owner of 1.5 c.f.s. which should have been one-half c.f.s.

In its finding No. 15 the court found that the quantity of water owned by the plaintiff was one-half c.f.s. and that is in accordance with the pleadings and evidence so that the clerical error is apparent on the face of the finding

and, therefore, should be harmless. But we have no objection to the Supreme Court calling the matter to the trial court's attention and asking that it be corrected as a clerical or typographical error.

It is contended in plaintiff's brief that because the witnesses on behalf of Hyde Park Town, namely the town officers and former water masters, testified that at times it was necessary to restrict the citizens of Hyde Park in watering their lawns to two hours per day and also that at times some parties living in the upper part of the town were short of water that this evidence necessarily should have been adopted by the court to find that Hyde Park was short of water. The reasons that the trial court probably declined to adopt this theory were not all stated by the trial court but some reasons that appear proper to us are the following:

- 1.

In the first place the plaintiff's own testimony shows that since the construction of the new pipe line in 1937 there is no shortage of water. Witness Fred Duce testified as follows: (Tr. 113, Ab. 44-45)

“Q: While you were mayor after you got this new system constructed was there sufficient water to furnish the citizens of Hyde Park culinary water?

A: Yes, sis.”

Witness Martin C. Reeder testified that there was no shortage of water after the construction of the new system (Tr. 173).

J. E. Hansen, the present water master testified on direct examination (Tr. 204, Ab. 69):

“I believe we have plenty of water but we have no surplus at the present time.”

And this same witness testified that at present the witness Karby is using the overflow from the city reservoir for irrigation purposes.

All of the testimony indicates that during at least a major portion of the time there was always an overflow at the intake of the Hyde Park water system.

Foster Gordon also testified (Tr. 102, Ab. 42):

“Every time I have been there they had an overflow.”

The witness Ephraim Weeks testified that he always saw an overflow at the intake box and he also testified on the one occasion he went to the Hyde Park Reservoir there was an overflow there (Tr. 134, Ab. 51).

The plaintiff's witness Geo. Z. Lamb who was appointed by the Town Board to negotiate this contract with the defendants to furnish them water for the right of way testified on direct examination by Mr. Thurman as follows: That he was the mayor of the Hyde Park Board in 1911 when the water system was constructed (Tr. 209, Ab. 58):

Q: Were you water master, at all?

A: When it was first installed, I was.

Q: Were you water master while you were a member of the board?

A: Yes, sir.

Q: Were you water master during the period of the distribution of the water after the pipe line had been completed?

A: For a little while.

Q: Did you make observations as to the efficiency of the supply at that time to take care of the needs of the people in Hyde Park?

A: We had sufficient.

Q: You had sufficient?

A: At that time.

Q: Did you have more than a sufficient?

A: Not much. Sometimes."

2.

The undisputed evidence in the case indicates that much of the trouble was caused by the drain-pipe installed in plaintiff's pipe line leading from the spring to the reservoir becoming clogged with roots between the intake and the reservoir.

Plaintiff's witness Kirby testified as follows (Tr. 220, Ab. 60):

"Q: You would go up and clean out the roots very often while you were water master.

A: Yes, sir, I did."

Plaintiff's witness George S. Daines on direct examination testified (Tr. 262, Ab. 71):

"A: I think the pipe line must have more or less got clogged in places with roots. It was difficult to get the

water along the line and get water to the reservoir. It was necessary to put in the new pipe."

3.

However, the important testimony in the case which bears out the court's finding is the expert testimony of engineers Schaub and Clyde.

Mr. Schaub testified (Tr. 190, Ab. 52) that under good engineering practice an engineer designing a culinary water system for a small community of this kind would be satisfied with 200 gallon of water per person per day for culinary water system and that this takes into consideration all requirements for drinking, watering flowers, gardens, lawns, etc.

Engineer Clyde, plaintiff's engineer, placed this amount at between three and four hundred gallon (Tr. 240-241, Ab. 65).

On cross examination Engineer Clyde admitted that the consumption according to a table which he had supplied for human consumption was 30 gallons per day per person and for each horse and head of cattle 10 gallons per day. Taking Mr. Clyde's highest figures of 40 gallons per day per person the daily consumption of 750 people would be 30,000 and allowing a liberal estimate (and it was only an estimate) of 2700 head of horses and cattle would be another 27,000 gallons or a total of 57,000 gallons per day for drinking and culinary purposes.

It is admitted, both in the pleading and in the evi-

dence, that Hyde Park Town has one-half c.f.s. of water which measured at the reservoir by Engineer Clyde actually showed that there was being delivered at the Hyde Park reservoir .55 c.f.s. (Tr. 252, Ab. 68). One-half c.f.s. equals 225 gallons per minute which equals 324,000 gallons per day so that under plaintiff's engineer's own testimony Hyde Park has 57,000 gallons per day for drinking and stock watering purposes and 267,000 gallons per day for irrigating and other purposes. In this connection Engineer Clyde testified that large amounts of water were required at times of fire. The undisputed evidence shows that the capacity of the Hyde Park reservoir is 62,000 (Tr. 261) so that there is enough water flowing into the Hyde Park reservoir each day to fill it five times and it is submitted that any additional fire protection needed by Hyde Park could be easily taken care of by increasing the capacity of the reservoir and stopping the waste from the present overflow. The undisputed evidence, therefore, shows that Hyde Park now has enough water to supply its 750 citizens with 432 gallons per day. If we adopt the defendants' expert testimony this is more than twice as much water as good engineering would require and if we adopt the plaintiff's engineer's theory of 300 gallons per person per day Hyde Park has a surplus of 750 times 132 or approximately 99,000 gallons per day, and if we adopt the 400 gallons per day, which is the greatest amount the plaintiff's engineer would allow and is the most favorable testimony in the record to them, Hyde Park still has a sur-

plus of 24,000 gallons per day, 600 gallons of which will supply the two tap of these defendants.

Plaintiff's engineer also testified by way of comparison that in Logan where people are on meters the average consumption is 150 gallons per day per person and the record also discloses that the usual meter arrangements is a minimum charge for 10,000 gallons per month per meter or family. Hyde Park has approximately 51,840 gallons per family of her people so that Hyde Park now has approximately five times as much water as is usually allowed as a minimum and the evidence in this case is that the average use is about one-half the minimum and it, therefore, seems that there is not only ample evidence to sustain the Finding of the court in connection with Hyde Park having ample water but the overwhelming weight of the evidence demonstrates that Hyde Park has an excess of water over any reasonable requirements for culinary purposes.

It is common knowledge that cities frequently find it necessary to make some restriction of hours for sprinkling lawns. It is elementary that public policy as applied by the courts must not encourage waste of water, particularly water fit for culinary purposes. Bearing in mind the equities and all the surrounding circumstances in this case before this court should stop these farmers from securing drinking water and water for culinary and stock watering purposes they might suggest to Hyde Park that they consider ending the waste there by installing meters.

Defendants offered to show that similar contracts to to the one in question exists in many of the communities in Cache County (Tr. 182) and if this sort of practice were to be condemned by this court it would mean ruin to a lot of our fine farm families who are clinging to the soil and to rural life and producing the kind of citizenry that today is the countries greatest need.

ASSIGNMENT No. 7.

Plaintiff complains that there is no evidence to support the finding that the use of the water by the defendants was adverse and under claim of right. The plaintiff admitted that these taps were installed by the Town of Hyde Park and were used continuously until the year 1938 (Tr. 137) and both Weeks and Toolson (Chamber's predecessor in interest) testified that the Town granted them the right to the use of this water. It is contended that under these circumstances the use was under a claim of right and that there is no evidence of any permissive use.

However, if this court should be convinced that the Finding as to adverse possession is not supported by the evidence, the other evidence in the case is ample to support the judgment that the plaintiff is the owner of the right of way and that this proceeding in condemnation is not necessary and for that reason any finding in connection with the matter of adverse use by the defendants of the said waters would be harmless error even if the Sup-

reme Court should conclude that it was not justified by the evidence:

Butler vs. Payne, 59 Utah 383, 203 Pac. 869.

Thomas vs. Foulgar, 71 Utah 274, 264 Pac. 975.

Plaintiff also claims that the proof is indefinite as to the exact amount of water used and that the judgment and decree is so indefinite as to make the same void. There is evidence as to the number of cattle that both Weeks and Chambers customarily had on their premises, and there is ample evidence as to the usual amount of water allowed to a family for culinary and stockwatering purposes and the judgment in this case that these defendants may not consume more than 300 gallons per day is sufficiently definite to prevent any waste of water and no cases cited by the plaintiff holds that order for a decree for culinary water to be sufficiently definite must define the number of people who take a drink, or the number of drinks (of water) a man may take in a day, or the different size drinks that a man or a boy might take, or the number of cattle permitted to drink at these taps. It has abundantly been demonstrated heretofore that 300 gallons per day will not in any way work to the material injury of the Hyde Park culinary system. This limit was inserted in the decree altho apparently it was not in the original contract. Complaint is made as to the indefiniteness of both the contract and the decree. The words of Judge Wolfe in the case of Genola vs. Santaquin City, 96

Utah 88, Pac. (2nd) 930 constitutes a sufficient answer to these arguments of indefiniteness:

“When the contract is read in the light of the purposes to be accomplished, there is no indefiniteness. Because laymen agree on very definite propositions derived from the actualities of the whole situation which they must deal with, these propositions do not become less definite in actuality because lawyers have difficulty legally labeling the nature of the transactions or in determining the legal aspects of those transactions. It is but natural that each side will choose to give the transactions that legal aspect which best suits its position.”

and again at page 934:

“Specific performance is granted by equity when it is plain that the party should and can perform and refuses to do so, and injustice not remediable by a money judgment would otherwise result. The nature of the remedy is revealed by the fact that equity takes a hand because the legal remedy is inadequate.”

Here the contract was sufficiently definite to satisfactorily work for twenty-eight years and surely all of the equities and circumstances of this case abundantly appeal to the conscience of the court, that after all of these years the town of Hyde Park should not be permitted to repudiate their contract and cut off the culinary water supply of these defendants and resort to condemnation of their right of way ignoring the justice and importance of the matter to the defendants so that the injustice that

would not only result to these individuals but to the far more important proposition of the injustice resulting to all individuals living without the corporate limits of municipalities dependent upon their water supply from the municipal water supply would be a serious injury to farmers all over the state. Public policy requires that farmers owning property outside of a city limit ought to be permitted to utilize drinking water running past their door where a contract for that purpose has been made in good faith and we contend the public policy of the Constitution was not intended to prohibit any such contract.

The other assignments as to the Findings being supported by the evidence are covered in later discussions.

It is the defendants' contention that not only is there sufficient evidence to sustain the Findings herein but that the findings are made in accordance with the clear weight of the evidence, most of which is undisputed.

THE CONTRACT TO DELIVER WATER TO THESE DEFENDANTS WAS VALID AND BINDING.

It is the defendants contention that the contract in 1911 was a valid and binding contract whereby the plaintiff secured the right to the use of the right of way as well as the waters saved by piping the same to the defendants for which the defendants secured the right to use water from the pipe line for culinary and stockwatering purposes. It is likewise our contention that the contract was a completed contract and, therefore, has nothing to do

with the claim of counsel that it is a contract in perpetuity. It is no more a contract in perpetuity than every exchange of property or property rights which if completed is a contract in perpetuity.

It is likewise the defendants contention:

1. That the contract was not void for the statute of frauds because it was not only partially performed but was completed and has been acted upon in accordance with the completed contract for 28 years.

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